

# PROCUREMENT POLICY

1 JULY 2021 - 30 JUNE 2025

ADOPTED BY COUNCIL: 24 MAY 2021

# **Procurement Policy**

# **CONTENTS**

Procurement Procurement Policy

A.	Overview	6
B.	Applicability	6
C.	Objectives	6
I	Procedures	7
1.1	Treatment of GST	7
2	Effective Legislative and Policy Compliance and Control	7
2.1	Ethics and Probity	7
2.1.1	Requirement	7
2.1.2	Conduct of Councillors and Council Staff	7
2.1.3	Conflict of Interest	7
2.1.4	Fair and Honest Dealing	8
2.1.5	Probity, Accountability and Transparency	8
2.1.6	Gifts and Benefits	8
2.1.7	Disclosure of Information	8
2.1.8	Complaints & Reporting Suspicious Activities	9
2.2	Governance	9
2.2.1	Structure	9
2.2.2	Methods	10
2.2.3	Responsible Financial Management	10
2.3	Procurement Thresholds and Competition	10
2.3.1	Procurement Principles	10
2.3.2	Procurement Methodology	11
2.3.3	Exemptions from Tendering	11

CD13843 Last Amended: 24 May 2021

Page 2 of 27

2.3.4	Public Tender Requirements	13
2.3.5	Collaborative Procurement	14
2.4	Delegation of Authority	15
2.4.1	Requirement	15
2.5	Internal Controls	15
2.6	Risk Management	15
2.6.1	General	15
2.7	Endorsement	15
2.8	Dispute Resolution	15
2.9	Contract Management	15
3	Demonstrate Sustained Value	16
3.1	Achieving Value for Money	16
3.1.1	Requirement	16
3.1.2	Approach	16
3.2	Sustainable Procurement	16
3.2.1	Sustainable Procurement Definition	16
3.2.2	Applying Sustainable Procurement in Council	17
3.2.3	Principles and Objectives	17
4	Build and Maintain Supply Relationships	19
<b>4</b> . I	Managing Suppliers	19
4.2	Supply Market Development	19
5	Policy Key Linkages and Governance	19
5.1.1	Standards and Linkages	19
5.1.2	Policy Review Process	19
5.1.3	Policy Enquiries and Contact Details	20
APPE	NDICES	21
Арре	endix I - Banyule City Council Procurement Methodology Thresholds	21
A.	Requirement for Tenders, Proposals and Quotes	21
Арре	endix 2 Banyule City Council – Sustainable Procurement Policy	22
A.	Sustainable Procurement commitment	22
B.	Sustainable Procurement Key Performance Indicators (KPI)	23
Арре	endix 3 Performance KPIs	25
Α.	Procurement Performance Indicators	25
Арре	endix 4 Council Plans, Strategies and Policies	26
Арре	endix 5 Council Specific Exemptions	27

# **Definitions and Abbreviations**

Term	Definition
Act	<u>Local Government Act 2020</u> .
Collaborative Procurement Arrangement	A contract established by the Council, government or a nominated agent, such as Procurement Australasia, Municipal Association of Victoria (MAV), Northern Councils Alliance (NCA) or local government entity, for the benefit of numerous state, federal and/or local government entities that achieves best value by leveraging combined economies of scale.
Commercial in Confidence	Information that, if released, may prejudice the business dealings or commercial interests of Council or another party, e.g. prices, discounts, rebates, profits, methodologies and process information, etc.
Contract Management	The process that ensures all parties to a contract fully meet their respective obligations as efficiently and effectively as possible, in order to deliver the contract objectives and provide Value for Money.
Council	Banyule City Council
Councillors	Council's elected representatives (the Mayor and Councillors) or Administrator(s) appointed to act in this capacity.
Council Staff	Includes all Council officers, temporary employees, contractors, volunteers and consultants while engaged by Council.
IBAC	The Independent Broad-based Anti-corruption Commission
Indigenous Business	An Indigenous Business is one that is at least 50% owned by an Aboriginal or Torres Strait Islands person(s) (consistent with Supply Nation's definition).
Local Business	A commercial business with an operational premises that is physically located within the municipal borders of the 7 Northern Regional Councils.
Northern Councils Alliance (NCA)	The 7 Councils comprising the NCA, being the Cities of Banyule, Darebin, Hume, Moreland and Whittlesea and Mitchell and Nillumbik Shire Councils.
Probity	Within government, the term "probity" is often used in a general sense to mean "good process". A procurement process that conforms to the expected standards of probity is one in which clear procedures that are consistent with the Council's policies and legislation, are established, understood and followed from the outset. These procedures need to consider the legitimate interests of suppliers and ensure that all potential suppliers are treated equitably.
Procurement	Procurement is the whole process of acquisition of external goods, services and works. This process spans the whole life cycle from initial concept through to the end of the useful life of an asset (including disposal) or the end of a service contract.
Schedule of Rates Contract	A standing offer arrangement based on a Schedule of Rates contract that sets out rates for goods and services which are available for the term of the agreement but without a commitment to purchase a specified value or quantity of goods or services.
Procurement Policy	CD13843   Last Amended: 24 May 2021   Page 4 of 27

Term	Definition
Sustainability	Activities that meet the needs of the present without compromising the ability of future generations to meet their needs.
Tender Process	The process of inviting parties from either a select list or via public advertisement to submit an offer by tender followed by evaluation of submissions and selection of a successful bidder or tenderer in accordance with predetermined evaluation criteria.
Total Contract Sum	<ul> <li>The potential total value of the contract including:</li> <li>costs for the full term of the contract, including any options for either party to extend the contract;</li> <li>applicable goods and services tax (GST);</li> <li>anticipated contingency allowances or variations;</li> <li>all other known, anticipated and reasonably foreseeable costs.</li> </ul>
Value for Money	Value for Money in procurement is about selecting the supply of goods, services and works taking into account both cost and non-cost factors including:  Non-cost factors such as contribution to the advancement of Council's priorities, fitness for purpose, quality, service and support; and Cost-related factors including whole-of-life costs and transaction costs associated with acquiring, using, holding, maintaining and disposing of the goods, services or works.

# I. Procurement Policy

#### A. Overview

This Procurement Policy is made under Section 108 of the <u>Local Government Act 2020 (the Act)</u>. The Act requires each council to:

- Prepare and adopt a procurement policy which specifies the principles, processes
  and procedures applying in respect of the purchase of goods and services and
  carrying out of works by the Council; and
- Review its Procurement Policy at least once during each 4-year term of the Council.
- This Policy has been developed collaboratively by the Northern Councils Alliance
  with a view to facilitating smooth collaborative procurement processes, consistent
  with the Act. This Policy also incorporates content that is specific to the Council and
  may differ from that of the other NCA councils and is intended to apply only to
  procurement involving the Council.

# B. Applicability

This Policy applies to all contracting and procurement activities at the Council and is applicable to Councillors and Council Staff.

It is recognised this will enhance achievement of the Council's objectives such as sustainable and socially responsible procurement, supporting local economies and obtaining Value for Money, leading to a better result in the provision of goods, services and works for the benefit of the community.

This Policy provides direction on the conduct of procurement activities throughout the sourcing, management and disposal phases. It also covers the general procurement framework but does not extend to the related accounts payable processes.

The Council must comply with this Procurement Policy before entering into a contract for the purchase of goods or services or the carrying out of works.

# C. Objectives

This Policy is consistent with the requirements of \$108(2) of the Act and will:

- Seek to promote open and fair competition and provide Value for Money;
- Provide clear guidelines to the Council to allow consistency and control over procurement activities;
- Demonstrate accountability to ratepayers and residents;
- Provide guidance on ethical behaviour in public sector procurement;
- Demonstrate the application of best practice in procurement activities;
- Demonstrate the consideration of sustainability in procurement with respect to social, economic and environmental factors;
- Increase the probability of obtaining the best outcome for the municipal community when procuring goods and services; and
- Seek to undertake collaborative procurement in accordance with section 2.3.4 of this Policy;

These objectives will be achieved by requiring, that the Council's contracting, purchasing and contract management activities:

- Support the Council's corporate strategies, aims and objectives;
- Span the whole life cycle of an acquisition and take sustainability considerations into account:
- Achieve demonstrable Value for Money;
- Are conducted in, and demonstrate an impartial, fair and ethical manner;
- Seek continual improvement through innovative and technological initiatives; and
- Generate and support Local Business through inclusion wherever practicable.

Procurement Policy	CD13843	Last Amended: 24 May 2021	Page 6 of 27
--------------------	---------	---------------------------	--------------

#### 1 Procedures

#### 1.1 Treatment of GST

All monetary values stated in this policy include GST unless specifically stated otherwise.

# 2 Effective Legislative and Policy Compliance and Control

#### 2.1 Ethics and Probity

#### 2.1.1 Requirement

The Council's procurement activities shall be performed in an open, transparent and ethical manner with demonstrated integrity, fairness and accountability that meets relevant legal requirements.

All tender processes shall be conducted in accordance with the requirements of this Procurement Policy and any associated procedures, relevant legislation, relevant Australian Standards, Commercial Law and the Act.

#### 2.1.2 Conduct of Councillors and Council Staff

Councillors and Council Staff shall at all times conduct themselves in ways that are in accordance with the Councillor Code of Conduct or the Staff Code of Conduct respectively, and will perform their duties ethically and with integrity and must:

- Treat potential and existing suppliers with equality and fairness;
- Not use their position to seek or receive personal gain in procurement matters;
- Maintain confidentiality of Commercial in Confidence information;
- · Present the highest standards of professionalism and probity;
- Afford suppliers and tenderers with the same information and an equal opportunity to tender or quote for goods, services and works contracts;
- Be able to account for all decisions and demonstrate and provide evidence of the processes followed;
- Not perform any work under any Council contracts they are supervising i.e. Council Staff cannot also work for the relevant supplier;
- Query incidents, decisions or directions that appear to contradict or deviate from Council's standards of ethics or probity or established policies and procedures; and
- Ensure that this Procurement Policy and Council's Procurement Guidelines are adhered to in relation to any expenditure of Council funds.

#### 2.1.3 Conflict of Interest

Councillors and Council Staff shall at all times avoid situations which may give rise to an actual or perceived conflict of interest. A conflict of interest may be a 'general' or a 'material' conflict of interest.

A member of Council Staff has a general conflict of interest in a matter if an impartial, fair-minded person would consider that the person's private interests could result in that person acting in a manner that is contrary to their public duty.

A member of Council Staff has a material conflict of interest in a matter if an affected person would gain a benefit or suffer a loss depending on the outcome of the matter. The benefit or loss may be direct or indirect and pecuniary or non-pecuniary. Affected persons include, among others, the member of Council Staff and their family members.

Council Staff involved in the procurement process, in particular preparing tender documentation, writing tender specifications, opening tenders, participating in tender

Procurement Policy	CD13843	Last Amended: 24 May 2021	Page 7 of 27
--------------------	---------	---------------------------	--------------

evaluation panels, preparing a recommendation report; and Councillors and Council Staff awarding tenders must:

- Avoid conflicts of interest, whether material or general or actual, potential or perceived;
- Declare that they do not have a conflict of interest in respect of the procurement.
   All Council Staff participating in tender evaluation panels must complete a Conflict of Interest declaration. Council Staff must declare any actual or perceived conflicts in line with Council's internal processes for reporting conflicts of interest; and
- **Observe** prevailing Council and Government guidelines on how to prevent or deal with conflict of interest situations; and not take advantage of any tender related information whether or not for personal gain.

#### 2.1.4 Fair and Honest Dealing

All prospective contractors and suppliers must be treated impartially and afforded an equal opportunity to tender or submit a quotation.

Any suspected improper conduct, including suspected fraud, corruption, substantial mismanagement of public resources, risk to public health and safety, risk to the environment, or detrimental action should be managed in accordance with Council's internal policies and processes.

#### 2.1.5 Probity, Accountability and Transparency

Accountability in procurement means being able to justify and provide evidence of the process followed. An independent third party must be able to see clearly that a process has been followed and that the process was fair and reasonable.

Council Staff must be able to account for all procurement decisions and ensure all procurement activities leave an audit trail for monitoring and reporting purposes.

#### 2.1.6 Gifts and Benefits

No Councillor or member of Council Staff shall seek or accept any immediate or future reward or benefit in return for the performance of any duty or work for Council or where it could be reasonably perceived as influencing them or their position or undermining their integrity or the integrity of the process in some way.

Any gift or benefit offered to a Councillor or Council Staff will be managed in accordance with Council's internal policies and processes.

Councillors and Council Staff, particularly contract supervisors:

- must not knowingly visit a current supplier's premises without invitation when acting in their official capacity; and
- must not knowingly engage a Council supplier for private benefit, unless that engagement is on proper commercial terms.

#### 2.1.7 Disclosure of Information

Commercial in Confidence information received by the Council must not be disclosed and is to be stored in a secure location.

Councillors and Council Staff must take all reasonable measures to maintain confidentiality of:

 Information disclosed by organisations in tenders, quotation or during tender negotiations; and

Procurement Policy	CD13843	Last Amended: 24 May 2021	Page 8 of 27
--------------------	---------	---------------------------	--------------

Commercial in Confidence information.

Councillors and Council Staff are to avoid references to current or proposed contracts in discussion with acquaintances or outside interests.

Discussion with potential suppliers during tender evaluations should not go beyond the extent necessary to resolve doubt on what is being offered by that supplier.

At no stage should any discussion be entered into which could improperly influence the procurement process or negotiation of a contract prior to the contract approval process being finalised, other than authorised pre-contract negotiations.

#### 2.1.8 Complaints & Reporting Suspicious Activities

### **Complaints Handling**

Members of the public and suppliers, are encouraged to report known or suspected incidences of improper conduct to the CEO. Councillors and Council Staff will report and manage complaints in accordance with Council's internal policies and processes.

#### **Reporting Suspicious Activities**

All Councillors, Council Staff and Council suppliers are required at all times to act honestly and with integrity and to safeguard the public resources for which they are responsible. Council is committed to protecting all revenue, expenditure and assets from any attempt to gain illegal benefits (financial or otherwise).

Council will take all reasonable steps to protect those who assist Council by providing information about suspected fraud. This will include confidentiality of identity and protection from harassment, to the extent possible.

Suspected improper conduct, offers of bribes, commissions and any other irregular approaches from suppliers, prospective suppliers or other individuals will be investigated and reported in accordance with Council's internal policies and processes.

The CEO must notify IBAC of any matter they suspect on reasonable grounds to involve corrupt conduct occurring or having occurred in accordance with mandatory reporting requirements under the *Independent Broad-based Anti-Corruption Commission Act* 2011.

#### 2.2 Governance

#### 2.2.1 Structure

Council has delegated a range of powers, duties and functions to the CEO in relation to procurement. The delegation aims to ensure that the Council's procurement structure operates according to processes that:

- Are flexible enough to procure in a timely manner the diverse range of goods, works and services required by Council;
- Guarantee that prospective contractors and suppliers are afforded an equal opportunity to tender or submit a quotation; and
- Encourage competition and collaboration, even where the CEO runs a procurement process under delegation.

Procurement Procurement Policy	CD13843	Last Amended: 24 May 2021	Page 9 of 27
--------------------------------	---------	---------------------------	--------------

#### 2.2.2 Methods

The Council's standard methods for procuring goods, services and works shall be by any of the following:

- Purchase order following a quotation process from suppliers for goods or services
  that represent best Value for Money under the quotation thresholds adopted by the
  Council. An approved purchase order must be created prior to committing
  expenditure on behalf of Council for the provision of services, goods or works in
  accordance with the Council's procurement thresholds and guidelines;
- Under contract following a quotation or tender process;
- Using Collaborative Procurement Arrangements;
- Multi-stage tenders commencing with an EOI followed by a tender process;
- Under a sole-sourcing arrangement in line with the conditions contained in section 2.3.3.2;
- Purchasing Cards; and
- Petty Cash,

unless other arrangements are authorised by Council or under appropriate delegated authority on an 'as needs' basis as required by abnormal circumstances such as emergencies.

#### 2.2.3 Responsible Financial Management

The principle of responsible financial management shall be applied to all procurement activities. Accordingly, to give effect to this principle, the availability of existing funds within an approved budget or source of funds shall be established prior to the commencement of any procurement action for the supply of goods, services or works.

Council funds must be used efficiently and effectively to procure goods, services and works and every attempt must be made to contain the costs of the procurement process without compromising any of the procurement principles set out in this Policy.

#### 2.3 Procurement Thresholds and Competition

Wherever it would likely achieve best value, procurements will be arranged under a relevant contractual arrangement established in accordance with section 108 of <u>the Act</u> and this Procurement Policy.

In every procurement activity all practicable efforts will be made to consider the sustainable procurement considerations as listed in Section 3.2.

Council will invite offers from the supply market for goods, services and works in accordance with the thresholds listed in <u>Appendix IA</u>.

#### 2.3.1 Procurement Principles

Council will apply the following fundamental best practice principles to procurement, irrespective of the value and complexity of that procurement:

- Value for Money;
- Sustainability (social, economic and environmental);
- Open and fair competition;
- Accountability;
- Risk management; and
- Probity and transparency.

Procurement Policy	CD13843	Last Amended: 24 May 2021	Page 10 of 27
--------------------	---------	---------------------------	---------------

# 2.3.2 Procurement Methodology

Section 108 of the Act details that each Council will set the public tender threshold above which tenders or expressions of interest for contracts must be publicly invited.

A public tender process must be used for all procurements valued at \$300,000 and above (incl. GST) for goods, services or works.

For procurements under \$300,000 (incl. GST), the procurement methodology and thresholds detailed in <a href="#Appendix IA">Appendix IA</a> will apply.

# 2.3.3 Exemptions from Tendering

The following circumstances are exempt from the general publicly advertised tender, quotation and expression of interest requirements.

Exemption Name		Explanation, limitations, responsibilities and approvals		
1.	A contract made because of genuine emergency or hardship	Where the Council has resolved that the contract must be entered into because of an emergency (e.g. to provide immediate response to a natural disaster, declared emergency).		
2.	A contract made with, or a purchase from a contract made by, another government entity, government-owned entity or other approved third party.	<ul> <li>This general exemption allows engagements:</li> <li>With another government entity or government owned entity. For example, Federal, State or Local Government or an entity owned by the Federal, State or Local Government; and/or</li> <li>In reliance on contracts and arrangements established by another government entity, local authority or local government group purchasing scheme, Municipal Association of Victoria (MAV) or National Procurement network members (e.g. Local Buy), Procurement Australia (PA).</li> </ul>		
3.	Extension of contracts while Council is at market	<ul> <li>Allows Council to extend an existing contract where the procurement process to replace the contract has commenced, and where the tender process or negotiations will take or are taking longer than expected.</li> <li>This exemption may be used when the establishment of an interim short-term arrangement with an alternative supplier is considered not to be in the public interest, as it may be cost prohibitive and/or present a risk in the delivery of critical public services to the municipality.</li> </ul>		
4.	Professional services unsuitable for tendering	<ul><li>Legal Services.</li><li>Insurance.</li></ul>		
5.	Novated Contracts	Where the initial contract was entered into in compliance with the Act and due diligence has been undertaken in respect to the new party.		

Procurement Procurement Policy	CD13843	Last Amended: 24 May 2021	Page 11 of 27
--------------------------------	---------	---------------------------	---------------

Exemption Name		Explanation, limitations, responsibilities and approvals		
6.	Information technology resellers and software developers	Allows Council to renew software licenses and maintenance and support, or upgrade existing systems, where there is only one supplier of the software, who holds the intellectual property rights to the software.		
7.	Regional Waste and Resource Recovery Groups	Situations where a Regional Waste and Resource Recovery Group constituted the Environment Protection Act 1970 had already conducted a public tender for and on behalf of its member councils.		
8.	Statutory Compulsory Monopoly Insurance Schemes	<ul><li>Motor vehicle compulsory third party</li><li>WorkCover</li></ul>		
9.	Operating Leases	Where a lessor leases an asset (generally a vehicle or plant and equipment) to the Council and assumes the residual value risk of the vehicle.		
10.	Other specific Council exemptions	<ul> <li>Defined in Appendix 5.</li> <li>Specific Council exemptions will be reviewed and updated in Appendix 5 from time to time, as per the Policy Review Process (section 5.1.2).</li> </ul>		

#### 2.3.3.1 Contract Variations

All contract variations must be assessed to determine whether they are properly characterised as variations, or whether they are in effect a new contract. This will depend on factors like:

- The monetary value of the proposed variation, i.e. the value of the variation in the context of the thresholds fixed by the Procurement Policy; and
- The subject matter of the proposed variation, and whether it is consistent with the scope of the original contract.

#### 2.3.3.2 Sole or select sourcing

Supply of goods, services or works can be sought from one supplier (sole sourcing) or a restricted group of suppliers (select sourcing) where it is consistent with this Procurement Policy and:

- It is in the public interest;
- There is one or a limited number of available tenderers in the market or suppliers able to submit quotations;
- The marketplace is restricted by statement of license or third-party ownership of an asset (excluding public utility plant); or
- Council is party to a joint arrangement where Council jointly owns the Intellectual Property with a third party provider.

#### **Sole Sourcing:**

If there is a current procurement or disposal process in place, that process must be terminated prior to sole sourcing being implemented.

Sole sourcing is subject to existing delegations.

Procurement	Procurement Policy	CD13843	Last Amended: 24 May 2021	Page 12 of 27

#### **Select Sourcing:**

Select sourcing is subject to existing delegations.

#### 2.3.4 Public Tender Requirements

All public tenders invited by the Council will be published via Council's eTendering Portal and may be advertised in the media.

Information regarding Current Tenders and Awarded Tenders will be published on Council's website.

#### 2.3.4.1 Tender Evaluation

A tender evaluation panel will be established to evaluate each tender submission against the tender's selection criteria. Tender evaluation panels can include external personnel in order to ensure the best outcome for a procurement activity and must comprise of at least 3 persons as well as a chairperson.

A detailed Tender Evaluation Plan shall be developed, approved and strictly adhered to by that panel. Amongst other things, this involves the establishment of more detailed evaluation criteria (i.e. than those published with the tender) and the application of a preapproved and robust weighted scoring system.

The Tender Evaluation Plan should be completed and signed off prior to the tender or quotation being issued.

#### 2.3.4.2 Evaluation Criteria

The Council may include the following evaluation criteria categories to determine whether a proposed contract provides Value for Money:

- Mandatory Compliance criteria (e.g. ABN registration, OH&S, Fair Work Act);
- Tendered price;
- Capacity of the Tenderer to provide the goods and/or services and/or works;
- Capability of the Tenderer to provide the Goods and/or Services and/or Works; and
- Demonstration of sustainability.

# 2.3.4.3 Probity Advisor

A formal probity plan should be developed, and a probity advisor appointed in the following circumstances:

- Where the proposed Total Contract Sum exceeds \$10 million over the life of the contract or for a lesser value set by Council from time to time; or
- Where a proposed contract is considered by Council or the CEO to be particularly complex, of a high risk or controversial nature, and requiring a high level of public confidence.

A probity advisor may be appointed to any tender evaluation panel and may be appointed to oversee the evaluation process.

#### 2.3.4.4 Shortlisting and Negotiations

Council may conduct a shortlisting process during EOI, tender and quotation processes. Shortlisting can be based on any criterion or criteria but only in pursuit of the most advantageous outcome for the Council.

Shortlisted tenderers may be invited by the Council to submit a best and final offer in relation to all or certain aspects of their respective tenders. Once a preferred tenderer/s is/are selected, negotiations can be conducted in order to obtain the optimal solution and

Procurement Procurement Policy	CD13843 Last Amended: 24 I	May 2021 Page 13 of 27
--------------------------------	----------------------------	------------------------

commercial arrangements, within the original scope and intent of the tender. Probity requirements apply to all negotiations.

#### 2.3.5 Collaborative Procurement

In accordance with section 108(c) of the Act, the Council will first give consideration to collaboration with other Councils and public bodies or utilise Collaborative Procurement Arrangements, when procuring goods, services and works in order to take advantage of economies of scale.

Council Staff must consider any opportunities for Collaborative Procurement in relation to a procurement process undertaken by Council. Any Council report that recommends commencing a procurement process must set out information relating to opportunities for Collaborative Procurement, if available, including:

- The nature of those opportunities, if any, and the councils or public bodies with which they are available; and
- Why Council did, or did not, pursue the identified opportunities for collaboration in relation to that procurement process.

When collaborating with the NCA, the Council will do so in accordance with the following:

- The NCA will develop a consolidated contract register to identify joint procurement projects on an annual basis.
- Council contracts with a minimum value of \$1 million per annum (per Council), for
  the ongoing supply of goods or provision of services or works, other than projects
  that are unique to an individual Council (e.g. unique construction or works projects),
  will be included in the consolidated contract register for collaboration consideration;
- Other contracts which, due to the subject matter, nature or scope, are likely to
  deliver operational efficiencies if procured in collaboration with the NCA, must be
  included in the consolidated contract register for consideration as a possible joint
  procurement opportunity;
- Where Collaborative Procurement is to be pursued:
  - A pre-market approval submission will be submitted to each Council and the NCA prior to commitment to collaboration, seeking delegation of contract approval to CEOs;
  - The NCA will establish a Heads of Agreement that gives authority for a lead council to act as each Council's agent in the Collaborative Procurement;
  - Each of the Councils who participate will be able to enter into a contract with the preferred supplier identified though the Collaborative Procurement process, or may choose as a group to enter into a contract using "jump in/opt-in" contract provisions during the contract term, or with the Council which conducted the public tender; and
  - Each participating council must be involved in:
    - The initial decision to undertake the Collaborative Procurement;
    - Preparation of, and agreement to, the specifications;
    - Ensuring probity for the Collaborative Procurement; and
    - The acceptance of tender(s) and awarding of contract(s).

Furthermore, Council may collaborate with other Councils or other bodies such as MAV Procurement or Procurement Australasia to procure goods, services or works, or utilise existing Collaborative Procurement Arrangements for the procurement of goods, services or works established through a public tender process where it provides an advantageous, Value for Money outcome for the Council.

Any Federal or State Government grant funded projects may be excluded from collaborative procurement.

Procurement Procurement Policy	CD13843	Last Amended: 24 May 2021	Page 14 of 27
--------------------------------	---------	---------------------------	---------------

#### 2.4 Delegation of Authority

#### 2.4.1 Requirement

Delegations define the limitations within which Council Staff are permitted to commit Council to the procurement of goods, services or works and the associated costs. The Instrument of Delegation allows specified Council Staff to undertake certain purchases, quotation, tender and contractual processes without prior referral to the Council. This enables the Council to conduct procurement activities in an efficient and timely manner whilst maintaining transparency and integrity.

Council has delegated responsibilities relating to the expenditure of funds for the purchase of goods, services and works, the acceptance of quotations and tenders and for contract management activities to the CEO. The CEO has further delegated some of those responsibilities to other members of Council Staff, subject to specified conditions and limitations.

#### 2.5 Internal Controls

The CEO will install and maintain a framework of internal controls over procurement processes that will ensure:

- More than one person is involved in and responsible for the authorisation and management of a transaction from end to end;
- Transparency in the procurement process;
- A clearly documented audit trail exists for procurement activities;
- Appropriate authorisations are obtained and documented;
- Systems are in place for appropriate monitoring and performance measurement; and
- A process is in place for escalation, where appropriate, of procurement matters (including procedural non-compliance) to the Executive Leadership Team, the Audit and Risk Committee and Council.

#### 2.6 Risk Management

#### 2.6.1 General

Risk assessments are a vital part of the procurement planning process, particularly for significant contracts. Risks will be identified for each part of the sourcing, transition, delivery and finalisation stages of procurement. Appropriate risk avoidance and mitigation strategies will be employed whenever practicable and appropriate.

#### 2.7 Endorsement

Council Staff must not publicly endorse any products or services without the permission of the relevant Director or the CEO.

### 2.8 Dispute Resolution

Where relevant, all Council contracts shall incorporate dispute management and alternative dispute resolution provisions to minimise the chance of disputes escalating to legal action.

# 2.9 Contract Management

In order to continually improve its procurement and contract management processes and outcomes, Council will evaluate and seek to improve on all aspects of procurement and contract management, in accordance with its documented procurement processes and Contract Management Guidelines.

Procurement	Procurement Policy	CD13843	Last Amended: 24 May 2021	Page 15 of 27

Good contract management ensures goods, services and works are delivered to the required standards of quality and quantity as intended by the contract through:

- Establishing a system monitoring and achieving the responsibilities and obligations of all parties under the contract;
- Providing a means for the early recognition of issues and performance problems and the identification of solutions;
- Adhering to the Council's risk management framework and relevant Occupational Health and Safety and sustainability requirements.

Council contracts are to include contract management requirements commensurate with the complexity of the procurement. Furthermore, contracts are to be proactively managed by the member of Council Staff responsible for the delivery of the contracted goods, services or works to ensure the Council and therefore the community, receives Value for Money.

Council awards some contracts that are strategically critical and of relatively high value. Council will provide additional senior oversight to the management of such significant contracts.

#### 3 Demonstrate Sustained Value

# 3.1 Achieving Value for Money

#### 3.1.1 Requirement

The Council's procurement activities will be carried out on the basis of obtaining Value for Money. This means minimising the total cost of ownership over the lifetime of the requirement consistent with acceptable quality, reliability and delivery considerations. Lowest price is not the sole determinant of Value for Money.

# 3.1.2 Approach

This will be facilitated by:

- Achieving continuous improvement in procurement activity in accordance with the direction set out in the Council's Strategic Procurement Plan;
- Developing, implementing and managing processes that support the co-ordination and streamlining of activities throughout the procurement lifecycle;
- Effective use of competition;
- Using existing Council contractual arrangement or Collaborative Procurement Arrangements where appropriate;
- Identifying and rectifying inefficiencies in procurement processes;
- Developing cost efficient tender processes;
- Council Staff responsible for providing procurement services or assistance within the Council providing competent advice in terms of available products and agreements; and
- Working with suppliers to create relationships that are professional, productive, and are appropriate to the value and importance of the goods, services and works being acquired.

#### 3.2 Sustainable Procurement

#### 3.2.1 Sustainable Procurement Definition

Sustainable procurement involves decision making that has the most positive environmental, social and economic impacts possible across the entire lifecycle of goods, services and works. The United Nations Environment Programme defines sustainable procurement as a

Procurement	Procurement Policy	CD13843	Last Amended: 24 May 2021	Page 16 of 27

"process whereby organisations meet their needs for goods, services, works and utilities in a way that achieves Value for Money on a whole of life basis in terms of generating benefits not only the organisation, but also to society and the economy whilst minimising damage to the environment."

#### 3.2.2 Applying Sustainable Procurement in Council

Sustainability will be embedded in the Council's work. All Council Staff will have a clear and shared understanding about what it means and how they can apply it to their daily tasks. The Council commits to applying the principles of sustainability to all of its decision-making and activities.

Council demonstrates sustainable procurement by:

- Being accountable for its impacts on society, the economy and the environment including the impacts of the organisation's supply chain;
- Examining anticipated organisational, project and/or community needs;
- Continually improving sustainability specifications, practices and outcomes; and
- Planning and undertaking sustainability evaluations as part of contracting activities.

### 3.2.3 Principles and Objectives

In its <u>Sustainable Procurement Policy as detailed in Appendix 2</u>, Council commits to:

- Applying specific principles of sustainability to its decision-making and activities; and
- Focusing on specific Economic, Environmental and Social objectives.

The following Economic, Environmental and Social objectives have been determined in line with these principles.

Area	Principles	Objectives
Economic	Council is committed to procurement that supports Local Business and economic diversity in the NCA.  Where practicable and applicable Council will give preference to goods manufactured or produced in Australia and will actively seek quotations and tenders from Local Businesses in the Northern Region.  Council's Sustainable Procurement Policy (as detailed in Appendix 2) will be underpinned by the following principles:  • Ensuring accountability and transparency;  • Ensuring Value for Money outcomes;  • Ensuring open and effective competition, and development of competitive Local Business and industry;  • Fostering innovation and emerging sectors; and  • Considering life cycle costs	Council's economic sustainability approach aims to:  Achieve Value for Money on a whole of life (including disposal) basis, rather than just initial cost;  Consider broader life cycle impacts of products procured;  Ensure probity and accountability in the procurement process;  Commit to sourcing locally as detailed in Appendix 2;  Build relationships with Local Business and encourage procurement from them to help build their capacity; and  Increase local employment.  Appendix 2 details the policy by which Council will achieve the above objectives.

Area	Principles	Objectives
Environmental	Where applicable Council will purchase goods, services and works that reduce air, water and soil pollution, greenhouse gas emissions, waste production, natural resource depletion and biodiversity depletion whenever they present an acceptable Value for Money outcome, and in some cases where they might not. Council's sustainable procurement strategies (as detailed in Appendix 2) will be underpinned by the following principles:  • Considering a product's or asset's lifecycle;  • Promoting circular economy participation;  • Managing demand to reduce procurement requirements;  • Encouraging innovation through specifications; and  • Engaging suppliers who are also committed to reducing their environmental impact.	Council's environmental sustainability and approach aims to:  • Improve energy efficiency;  • Reduce greenhouse gas emissions and contribution towards Council's carbon footprint;  • Minimise waste production;  • Improve water efficiency;  • Reduce air, water and soil pollution;  • Reduce biodiversity impacts; and  • Increase the use of recycled materials to:  • Reduce demand for raw materials and non-renewable resources; and  • Close the loop on kerbside recycling.  Appendix 2 details the policy by which Council will achieve the above objectives.
Social	Council is committed to building stronger communities and meeting social objectives which benefit the municipality and commits to integration of measures in its procurement processes and documentation which promote improved social outcomes.  Council's sustainable procurement (as detailed in Appendix 2) will be underpinned by the following principles:  A thorough understanding of the socio-economic issues affecting the community;  Creation of training and employment opportunities for unemployed or disadvantaged residents and ratepayers in Council's municipality, and marginalised job seekers in Council's municipality, to address local socio-economic issues;  Promotion of equity, diversity and equal opportunity; and  Respect for human rights, the rule of law and international norms of behaviour.	<ul> <li>Council's social sustainability approach aims to:</li> <li>Ensure vendors do not exploit workers and provide fair wages, including inclusive business practices;</li> <li>Maintain a social procurement program to increase social procurement spend across the NCA;</li> <li>Ensure sourced products are accessible by all segments of the community;</li> <li>Increase employment opportunities for indigenous people, people with a disability, disadvantaged people and long term unemployed;</li> <li>Improve gender equity; and</li> <li>Prevent, detect and remove modern slavery from Council's supply chain.</li> </ul> Appendix 2 details the strategies by which Council will achieve the above objectives.

# 4 Build and Maintain Supply Relationships

#### 4.1 Managing Suppliers

Council recognises the importance of effective and open working relationships with its suppliers and is committed to managing existing suppliers via performance measurements to ensure the benefits negotiated through contracts are delivered.

#### 4.2 Supply Market Development

A wide range of suppliers are encouraged to compete for Council work. The focus for new work need not always be with the larger more familiar businesses. Other types of organisations offering business diversity include:

- Green suppliers;
- Local, small to medium sized enterprises (SMEs) and Social enterprises;
- Ethnic and minority businesses (e.g. Indigenous Business); and
- Volunteer and community organisations.

# 5 Policy Key Linkages and Governance

#### 5.1.1 Standards and Linkages

The Council's procurement activities shall be carried out to the professional standards in accordance with best practice and in compliance with the *Act* and applicable policies and procedures including Codes of Conduct for Councillors, Council Staff and suppliers.

Compliance will be monitored by the Council's Procurement Team and minor issues identified will be addressed by Council Staff in leadership positions. Where required, serious compliance issues will be reported by the CEO to the Audit and Risk Committee and Council.

All Council policies comply with the Victorian Charter of Human Rights and Responsibilities.

This Policy has clear linkages to a range of codes, charters, legislation and Council documents, including:

- Local Government Act 2020
- Procurement procedures and guidelines
- Purchasing and accounts payable manuals
- Codes of Conduct and associated policies
- Contract management guidelines

This policy will help guide Council's work delivered through Council's key plans, strategies and policies listed in Appendix 4.

Other relevant legislative requirements include compliance with the <u>Competition and Consumer Act 2010</u>, Goods Act 1958, Fair Work Act 2009, Working with Children Act 2005, Working with Children Regulations 2016 and the Environment Protection Act 1970 and Environment Protection Act 2017 and other relevant Australian Standards.

# 5.1.2 Policy Review Process

In accordance with the Act, Council will review its Procurement Policy at least once during each 4-year term of the Council.

Members of the NCA will endeavour to work together to keep this Policy under review and to prepare any amendments to Sections 1-5.

Procurement Policy	CD13843	Last Amended: 24 May 2021	Page 19 of 27
--------------------	---------	---------------------------	---------------

Any amendment to the Sections within Appendices I, 2, 3 4 and 5, which is specific to the individual Council can be made at any time during the 4-year term of the Council and is only required to be reviewed and adopted by the individual Council.

# 5.1.3 Policy Enquiries and Contact Details

For further information on this policy, please contact Council's Procurement Function on:

Email: Procurement.requests@banyule.vic.gov.au

Phone: (03) 9490 4217

# **APPENDICES**

All policy requirements contained within these Appendices Sections are only applicable to Banyule City Council.

# **Appendix I - Banyule City Council Procurement Methodology Thresholds**

# A. Requirement for Tenders, Proposals and Quotes

Council will invite tenders, proposals, quotes and expressions of interest from the supply market for goods, services and works in accordance with the thresholds listed below:

Procurement Threshold Incl of GST/	Procurement Methodology
<\$1,000	One verbal quotation.
\$1,001 - \$10,000	Obtain at least one written quotation or catalogue item.
\$10,001 - \$30,000	Obtain at least two written quotations.
	At least three written quotes are to be invited from suppliers who are considered able to meet the requirements.
\$30,001 - \$100,000	Where only one quote is received from those invited, Value for Money must be demonstrated.
φ50,001 - φ100,000	When seeking and or evaluating quotes, preference will be applied to Local Business and a minimum of one Local Business must be invited, depending on availability of Local Businesses.
	Obtain a Contract Number.
	Undertake a formal select Request for Quote process by following the process within Council's e-Tendering Portal.
	At least three written quotes are to be invited from suppliers who are considered able to meet the requirements.
\$100,001 - \$300,000	Where only one quote is received from those invited, Value for Money must be demonstrated.
	When seeking and or evaluating quotes, preference will be applied to Local Businesses and a minimum of one Local Business must be invited, depending on availability of Local Businesses.
>\$300,000	A public tender process is required for the procurement of goods, services or works where once-off or ongoing cumulative spend over the life of the contract is expected to exceed \$300,000.

Procurement transactions will not be split to circumvent these thresholds. Obtaining sufficient quotations can sometimes be difficult, e.g. if there are few suppliers for the goods, services or works being sought or where the work is highly specialised. In such a case a Director may waive the requirement to request three quotations if they reasonably consider that it is appropriate to do so. Waivers should be in writing and saved to Council's ERMS for future reference, if required.

Procurement Policy	CD13843	Last Amended: 24 May 2021	Page 21 of 27
--------------------	---------	---------------------------	---------------

# **Appendix 2 Banyule City Council – Sustainable Procurement Policy**

#### A. Sustainable Procurement Commitment

Banyule City Council commits to applying the principles of sustainability to all its procurement activities by:

- Ensuring all Council Staff have a clear and shared understanding about what it means and how they can apply it to their daily tasks.
- Embedding sustainable procurement in the supply chain through educating and supporting suppliers to develop sustainable practices such as reducing emissions and increasing employment of local residents experiencing social and economic exclusion.
- Implementing a strategy to increase procurement with Social Enterprises, Aboriginal Enterprises and Australian Disability Enterprises (collectively known as Social Benefit Suppliers) and Local Businesses.

Council commits to applying principles of sustainability as defined in Section 3.2.3 of the policy to its procurement activities. The following economic, environmental and social objectives have been determined in line with these principles.

#### **Economic**

Council commits to procurement that supports local business and economic diversity in the Northern Region municipalities. Where practicable Banyule City Council will give preference to contracts for the purchase of goods, machinery or material manufactured or produced in Australia, and will actively seek quotes and tenders from Local Businesses in the Northern Region where such purchases may be justified on Value for Money grounds.

Council considers the economic benefits on spend on goods and service that are retained within the local economy and therefore considers economic sustainability in the form of;

- increased local employment
- increased activity and spend in the local economy with identifiable benefits to the community and for the Northern Region
- building relationships with local businesses and encouraging purchasing from local suppliers to help build their capacity
- fostering innovation and emerging sectors.

#### **Environmental**

In 2019 Council declared a climate emergency and in doing so has committed to safe and sustainable environments for future generation. Council has set two goals in relation to climate change:

- To be a carbon neutral organization without relying on offsets by 2028; and
- Have a carbon neutral community by 2040.

Through its <u>Corporate Emissions Reduction Plan</u> and <u>Community Climate Action Plan</u>
Council has set out sustainable procurement objectives and outcomes to achieve the above goals.

Council recognises that recycling has become a major issue within Australia and will continue to explore opportunities to minimise waste and encourage sustainability practices to drive

Procurement Policy	CD13843 Last Am	ended: 24 May 2021	Page 22 of 27
--------------------	-----------------	--------------------	---------------

Council's goal to move towards zero waste as recognized through the <u>Towards Zero Waste Management Plan.</u>

Council will provide instruction and guidance to all staff on how to embed the 5Rs - refuse, reduce, reuse, repurpose and recycle as core values in all future contracts, and ensure, where possible, that products purchased can be recycled at end of life.

#### Social

Procurement

Procurement Policy

Through its <u>Social Enterprise Strategy 2020-2025</u>, <u>Inclusive Local Jobs Strategy 2020-2025</u>, <u>Innovate Reconciliation Action Plan</u> Council has set key objectives for social procurement and targets to increase spend with and engagement of Social Benefit Suppliers by:

- Building a stronger social enterprise in Banyule by building business capacity and capability, improving market access and increasing community awareness and engagement;
- Stimulating inclusive employment opportunities through partnering with local employers, agencies and other organisations to build inclusive employment opportunities; and
- Increasing access, inclusion and opportunities for Aboriginal and Torres Strait Islander suppliers.

#### **B.** Sustainable Procurement Key Performance Indicators (KPI)

Council has developed the following KPIs to measure the success of its initiatives to integrate sustainability in the procurement process. The Sustainable Procurement Program shall track and report annually on the KPIs to Council.

KPI	KPI - DESCRIPTION	MEASURE	TARGET
SPFI	Embed a whole-of-council procurement framework that leverages Council purchasing to support environmental, social and economic outcomes.	Formal change management strategy and training program around changes to policy and guidelines delivered to internal Council Staff	100% by 30 June 2022
SPF2	Educate suppliers about sustainable procurement.	Number of annual events and tender briefings to educate suppliers about sustainable procurement in Banyule.	2021/22 : I 2022/23+ : 3
SPF3	Embed best practice environmentally sustainable design specifications into capital works and maintenance programs.	% of top 10 Building projects Building Projects that integrate Sustainable Buildings Guidelines into tender specifications	2022/23 : 50% 2023/24 : 80% 2024/25+ : 100%
SPF4	Integrate sustainability criteria, weightings and carbon emission questions into procurement processes for categories identified with medium/high environmentally sustainable outcomes.	% of total tenders (for identified categories) with tailored sustainability criteria, weightings and carbon emissions.	2022/23 : 50% 2023/24 : 75% 2024/25+ : 100%
SPF5	Implement Carbon Emission Reduction Opportunities in line with Sourcing Plan ("Quick wins and medium-benefit opportunities")	Number of identified carbon emission reduction opportunities identified from annual sourcing plan delivered per financial year	2022/23 : 50% 2023/24 : 75% 2024/25+ : 100%

CD13843 Last Amended: 24 May 2021

Page 23 of 27

KPI	KPI - DESCRIPTION	MEASURE	TARGET
SPF6	Implement Waste Avoidance & Reduction Opportunities in line with Sourcing Plan ("Quick wins and medium-benefit opportunities")	Number of identified waste avoidance & reduction emission reduction opportunities identified from annual sourcing plan delivered per financial year*	2022/23 : 50% 2023/24 : 75% 2024/25+ : 100%
SPF7	Communication & Celebration of Sustainable Procurement Successes	Number of Sustainable Procurement Case Studies published per financial year.	2022/23 : 3p.a. 2023/24 : 4p.a. 2024/25+ : 5p.a.
SPF8	Create new local jobs for local people experiencing barriers to employment	Number of local jobs created annually	120 by 2025
SPF9	% of labour hours for capital works projects over \$2m for local people experiencing barriers to employment	% of total number of labour hours for projects	10%
SPF10	Increase % of direct Social Benefit Supplier spend	% of annual total spend.	2022/23 : 0.5% 2023/24 : 1% 2024/25 : 1% 2025/26 : 2% 2026/27 : 3%
SPFII	Increase number of active Social Benefit Suppliers	Number of Social Benefit Suppliers	2022/23 : 25 2023/24 : 25 2024/25+ : 50
SPF12	Increase spend with Local Business as a % of total spend	% of annual total spend	2% annually
SPF13	Prevent modern slavery and trafficking from existing in Council's Supply Chain.	Prepare and submit an annual (voluntary) Commonwealth Modern Slavery statement	100% by 30 June 2024

# **Appendix 3 Performance KPIs**

#### A. Procurement Performance Indicators

Banyule City Council will seek to improve its procurement performance by capturing and analysing data on key performance indicators including:

- Extent of contracts delivered on time and on budget;
- New Collaborative Procurement contracts;
- New preferred supplier (panel) contracts;
- The number of Local Businesses engaged and proportion of local spend;
- Value of savings and benefits achieved;
- Level of compliance with the Procurement Policy; and
- Annual spend on sustainable goods and services.

# **Appendix 4 Council Plans, Strategies and Policies**

This section lists the additional Council plans, policies and strategies that have clear linkages to this Procurement Policy.

- Child Safe Policy
- Corporate Emissions Reduction Plan
- Inclusive Local Jobs Action Plan 2020-2025
- Inclusive Local Jobs Strategy 2020-2025
- Innovate Reconciliation Action Plan
- Social Enterprise Strategy 2020-2025
- Towards Zero Waste Management Plan

# **Appendix 5 Council Specific Exemptions**

This section will include any additional exemptions not included in Section 2.3.3 from tendering applicable to Banyule City Council that are identified from time to time.